ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Apr i
7

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Represent ati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

M ke Hawker,
Ji m Wi t aker,
Bruce Weyhrauc
Peggy W/ son

Max G uenberg

Cheryl | Heinze
Vi ¢ Kohring
Nor man Rokeber
Carl Mbses

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Represent ati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

Ral ph Samuel s

Dan (gg
Paul Seaton

Les Gara

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 9

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of

| 17, 2003
12 a.m

Co-Chair

Co-Chair
h

g

the State of Al aska

relating to an appropriation limt and a spending limt.

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 9

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM  APPROPRI ATI ON/ SPENDI NG LIM T

SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) STOLTZE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 31/ 03 0102 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/31/03 0102 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 11/03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

02/ 11/03 (H Heard & Held

HOUSE WM COW TTEE

April 17, 2003



M NUTE( STA)

03/ 28/ 03 0687 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  ROKEBERG

04/ 04/ 03 0797 (H W&M REFERRAL ADDED BEFORE STA

04/ 09/ 03 (H WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 09/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d

04/ 09/ 03 (H M NUTE( &M

04/ 17/ 03 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska,

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, commented on changes in Version
D of the proposed conmttee substitute to HIR 9.

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Staff

to Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about HIR 9.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-9, SIDE A
Number 0001

COCHAIR JIM WH TAKER cal |l ed the House Special Conmmttee on \Ways
and Means neeting to order at 7:12 a.m Representatives Hawker,
Wi t aker, Weyhrauch, WIson, and G uenberg were present at the
call to order. Representatives Sanuels, QOgg, Seaton, and Gara
were al so present.

HIR 9- CONST AM APPROPRI ATI ON/ SPENDI NG LIM T

CO- CHAIR WHI TAKER announced that the only order of business
woul d be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 9, Proposing anmendnents to
the Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to an
appropriation imt and a spending limt.

Number 0138
CO CHAI R HAWKER noved to adopt conmmttee substitute (CS) for HIR

9, Version 23-LS0435\D, Cook, 4/16/03, as the working docunent.
There being no objection, Version D was before the committee.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- April 17, 2003



CO CHAI R HAWKER expl ai ned that the proposed CS is substantially
identical to the original HIR 9. Section 1(a), establishing an
appropriation limt, has not changed. There are changes on page
2, lines 10-21, in subsections (b) and (c). In the original
resolution, subsection (b) allowed an additional 2 percent
appropriation from the base year on an affirmative vote of
three-quarters of the nenbers of each house. In the sane
resol ution, subsection (c) stated that if appropriations for a
year exceed the anmount allowed for appropriations, then the
governor should reduce expenses by the executive branch for its
operation and adm ni stration.

CO CHAI R HAWKER continued that under the proposed CS, subsection
(b) allows the 2 percent increase of the base level by the
affirmati ve vote of two-thirds rather than three-quarters of the
menbers of each house. Subsection (c) in the CS allows a second
2 percent increnent in addition to those from subsections (a)
and (b) but that second 2 percent increnent requires the three-
quarter affirmative vote of both houses. Essentially, this CS
nerges the language from SIJR 23 in a prior year and the | anguage
fromthis year's HIR 9.

Nunmber 0426

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said a natural disaster would require
nore of an expenditure. He urged the conmittee to consider
ot her escape clauses that would allow additional expenditures in
extraordi nary situations. He said, "The only thing |I've |earned
in this business is that we can't think of everything."

Nunmber 0502

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HIR 9, directed Representative Guenberg to page 1, lines 12-
13, an exenption from the spending limt ["to nmeet a state of
di saster declared by the governor"]. He noted that HIR 9 is his
first effort [at a constitutional spending limt] and thanked
the commttee for its work. He said nothing in the resolution
is inviolate, but he would like to create as true a spending
limt as possible.

Nunmber 0637

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if it's possible to have a sunset
[provision] in a constitutional anendnent.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- April 17, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that there's a sunset clause on
page 2, lines 27-31, in Section 30. He said he's been told it
is constitutional, but he could not predict how the suprene
court would rule on it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that a constitutional sunset woul d
depend on the provision, but in nost cases, it wuld stand [a
court chall enge].

CO CHAIR HAWKER said he was confident that the sunset provision
in the prior session's SIJR 23 was constitutional. He said the
resol uti on passed both houses, and he has faith in the attorneys
that crafted the sunset provision.

Nunmber 0902

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the exenption to the spending cap is
included for energency situations. He questioned whether this
energency funding would eventually beconme the base year for the
subsequent two years.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said it's problematic not to know what
the total budget figure is for a year.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that in a sequence of years in
the future, the legislature would appropriate nore noney to deal
with an earthquake or a fire. Then in future years, the base
year would be increased by the large escalator based on an
energency [appropriation].

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE explained that the exenptions are by
their nature one-tine expenditures. For exanple, energency
expenditures or receipt of federal nobney are not continuing and
shoul d not be part of an escal at or base.

REPRESENTATI VE VWEYHRAUCH asked why HIR 9 is good public policy.
Number 1135

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that the public |acks confidence in
the legislature to control spending, even the nbst conservative
| egi sl atures and governor. Legislatures see how difficult it is
[to contain or cut spending]. Alaska is facing declining
revenues and wll have alternative revenue sources in the
future, if the public accepts them Conservative Al askans who
will have to swallow the new revenues have to know there's a
cap, that the new revenues won't be used to fuel an increase in

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- April 17, 2003



gover nnment . He said for him and for sone of his colleagues on

both sides of the political spectrum a spending |limt is an
absolute necessity before they wll even talk about new
revenues.

COCHAIR WH TAKER said the commttee is considering HIR 9
because it has to deal with the political reality in order to
develop a fiscal regine that deals with the economc reality.

Nunber 1322

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH reiterated that HIR 9 would give the
public a sense of confort that spending is going to be
controlled by a cap except for extraordinary reasons. He asked
Representative Stoltze if he favors additional revenue-
generating nmeasures with this kind of nmechanismin place.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he did not. He said there are other
[l egislators who are] advocates for increased revenues. He said
[ new revenues] are not a discussion point for himuntil there's
sone type of protection [against excessive governnent spending].
He said HIR 9 is not part of his package to acconpany new taxes;
that's not part of his agenda. He said he expects that others

will put forward taxes, and this resolution is his defensive
neasur e.
Number 1639

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG i dentified a question in HIR 9 that is
common to a nunber of pieces of legislation - the issue of who
deci des. He said that a constitutional spending |limt is a
rigid framework because it's difficult to change. The
| egi sl ature cannot change [the budget cap] except in a narrow
way, 2 percent, year by year. That may not provide for all the
unseen problens the state could have, for exanple, inflation on

a national or international level. Another exanple is growth in
the econony, for exanple, ANWR, a gas pipeline, or an increased
mlitary presence. He said there's no way the governnent can

keep pace to increase the nunber of teachers, firenen, and
police. This resolution doesn't allow this growh to occur, he
said. Alaska needs sone flexibility in the constitution or the
| egislature will have to keep anending this provision.

Number 1934

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE remnded the commttee that he is
reluctant to anend the constitution. He said he's really

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- April 17, 2003



concerned about indexing because it l|eads to governnment grow h.
This approach forces the legislature to nake tough choices in
the face of inflation. He said that 4 percent growh,
especially considering the state's revenue picture, IS generous.

CO CHAIR HAWKER asked how a limtation on government spending
can acconmpdate econom c grow h. He said that currently
expenses exceed revenue, and he sees no inmediate solution and
no i medi ate state gromh. But over the course of tinme, perhaps
policymakers can balance the budget, <control expenses, and

consider alternative revenues. He said sonewhere down the road
when real growth finally happens, it will be necessary to expand
gover nnment . The sunset provision is an excellent tool that
gives the state six years to get its house in order and bal ance
its budget. After six years, if the public concurs, the
| egislature gets the green light to go ahead and build the

state's infrastructure.
Nunmber 2316

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked how the spending cap can accommodate
the kinds of increases in governnment's fixed costs such as
i nsurance increases of 100-1,200 percent in the last two years
and heating fuel bills of 80 percent in the last year and a
hal f . How does this resolution address these kinds of
ci rcunst ances, he asked.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said the legislature can increase the
budget annually by up to 4 percent, but the answer is that the
[rising costs] force prioritization. He said that neeting fixed
costs would be the highest priority; it would probably force
| ocal governnents to absorb those costs. He said instituting a
statewide inconme tax is not an acceptable answer to him or to
the public. Inflation will force legislators to prioritize; the
choices won't be pretty, he admtted.

Nunber 2549

REPRESENTATIVE OGG said that nany Al askans experienced the
i npact of the Trans-Al aska Pipeline and watched the increase of
property val ues, goods, and the influx of people. This happened
in a very short tinme period. He said he does not see how HIR 9
woul d allow the state to address that type of positive grow h.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE acknow edged that the commttee may chose

to expand the spending limt. He said he tried to start with a
very conservative approach to governnment expenditures.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- April 17, 2003



Number 2738

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked whether the |anguage starting on

page 2, line 18, in subsection (b) rules out the next subsection
(c).

Nunmber 2802

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Staff to Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska
State Legislature, said that subsection (c) covers an
appropriation that exceeds the limt under (a) and (b). The

initial 2 percent growh requires a two-thirds vote, and an
additional 2 percent, for a total of 4 percent growh, would
require a three-quarters vote. At nost there could be a 4
percent growth, she testified.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON noted that even though the |[|anguage
restricts the budget to the two fiscal years preceding the
fiscal year for which appropriations are nmade, that's not what
HIR 9 does.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE stated that the |egislature can raise the
budget by 4 percent with a super nmgjority vote.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON reiterated her wunderstanding that the
resol ution appears to state sonmething different.

Nunber 2959
V5. BLAI SDELL explained that the resolution uses the previous

two fiscal years as the base, so that the legislature knows how
much noney has been appropriated. The one-year prior budget is

usual ly not conplete. For exanple, the legislature is working
on the FY 04 budget now, but the state is currently operating in
FY 083. Because there mght be sonme unexpected expenditures or

suppl enental s, the base nunber for FY 03 is not yet known.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON sai d she understands what Ms. Blaisdell is

sayi ng. On page 2, line 16, the words "an appropriation that
exceeds the limt wunder (a) and (b)" refers to the first 2
percent [increase] and the legislature is considering another 2
percent increase. But on Iline page 2, lines 18-21, the
resolution reads, "The total anount of appropriations ... nay

not exceed two percent of the anpbunt appropriated for the |ast
two fiscal years preceding the fiscal year for which the
appropriations are nade."

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- April 17, 2003



Number 3122

CO CHAI R HAWKER noted that Representative WIlson left out three
words [on page 2, line 19], "under this subsection". He said
that within this subsection, an increnental 2 percent may be
made with the sanme paraneter that is applied in the previous
par agr aph.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE confirned that the subcommttee that
devel oped the proposed CS intended tw possible 2 percent
I ncreases.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the drafters review this
section to make sure that it cannot be m sinterpreted.

Nunmber 3318

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that last vyear's budget contained
proposals to cut school budgets. The Kenai school district
woul d have lost alnbst 60 teachers; communities in Southeast
woul d have | ost 25 percent of their teachers. He cautioned that
by I Nposi ng a spendi ng cap, t he | egi sl ature m ght
institutionalize failure and mght prevent Alaskans from
responding to their greatest needs. He noted that |ast year the
state could not provide foster children with the nunber of
soci al workers needed for the foster care systemto succeed. By
inmposing a spending cap, he said, the legislature can't go

beyond the failure that was institutionalized |ast year. He
asked how a spending cap on last year's budget will allow the
state to ever solve those ills.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that the spending cap will force
the legislature to set priorities and address how to pay for
t hem

Nunmber 3552

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH confirmed with Representative Stoltze
that the intent of placing this cap in the constitution is to
discipline the legislature to control its spending and before it
i ncreases revenues through taxation, a cap nust be in place. He
asked if this neasure will be necessary when spending and incone
beconme the same or when revenues exceed spendi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that if the revenues were there and
the public was confortable wth the spending level, this

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- April 17, 2003



resolution would not be necessary. But he noted that he |ives
in a different world.

Nunber 3720

REPRESENTATI VE = WEYHRAUCH  said t he constitution IS t he
under pi nning of state government, and a change to it wll be
long lasting. Aside from the sunset date, would it be possible
to [set aside the limt] during tines when incone is greater
t han expenses, letting the budget grow nore than 4 percent, he
asked.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE noted that the sunset provision gives the
public the opportunity at six years [to assess the useful ness of
the spending cap] and then every six years after that.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked for clarification about the
sunset provision. He explained his understanding of HIR 9: the
public votes on it; if approved, it becones part of the
constitution; when the sunset date conmes into play, this
provision |leaves the constitution; the only way it comes back
into the constitution is if the voters approve it again.

Number 3935

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said HIR 9 has a big red button that
allows the voters to jettison the whol e idea.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if after the sunset, the
| egi slature debates a new resolution [and decides whether] to
put it before the voters again.

Number 4001

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said the issue of continuing the cap
automati cal ly goes before voters.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if it would be worthwhile to have
the legislature debate whether it should go on the ballot again.
He asked if it ties the hands of future |egislatures by not
being able to discuss it before it goes on the ball ot again.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that the |l egislature could repea
this constitutional anendnent with another [constitutiona
amendnent] .

Number 4055

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- April 17, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if the provision is intended to
remain in the constitution.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that the provision would be repeal ed
if the voters rejected it every six years.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said this is not a conplete sunset; his
i dea of a sunset is a provision that goes away.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that this is a nodified sunset,
nodel ed after the constitutional convention provision.

Number 4157

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed concern because there is a
di sconnect between the |arger and smaller popul ation areas over
budget cuts. She nentioned that some comrunities have a 27
percent cut in teachers this year due to [last year's] budget
cuts.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he rejects the characterization that
these cuts are a result of this year's legislature; there are
also local factors that have caused those reductions. The
publ i ¢ does enough blam ng the | egislature, he said.

Nunmber 4316

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON noted that Wangell has a sales tax, a
property tax, and it pays for the school systemup to the state

cap in nost years. If she applied that same percent to
Anchorage, it would have to lay off 971 teachers, and that m ght
put these cuts in perspective, she said. She said she is very
unconfortable with a nodified sunset provision. Some snal

comunities carry their weight as well as larger comunities.
She said the commttee needs to think about what this provision
really neans.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that the cap on the appropriation
does not apply to the exenptions, for exanple, the Alaska
Rai | r oad. If the state appropriates $700 mllion one year to
the Alaska Railroad or noney to cover a state disaster, he
confirmed that those expenditures do not becone part of the base
budget two years | ater

TAPE 03-9, SIDE B
Number 4644

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- April 17, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that exenption (10) excludes both of
the 2 percent increases nmade under subsections (b) or (c). He
said sone of the commttee's budget projections show a 2 percent
growh or some growth but those are specifically excluded from
being considered in the base year. He said the increased
appropriations under (b) and (c) do not count as increases in
the previous years' budgets. He noted a spending limt that is
totally flat related to any of these 10 [exenptions]. Under HIR
9, the budget cannot grow, he asked for clarification on this
poi nt .

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said Representati ve Seat on has
characterized HIR 9 accurately. He explained that his intent
was a flat governnent budget. He said sone people may say he is
not taking a conservative enough approach to the spending limt.

Nunber 4451

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted, that given Representative Stoltze's
clarification, the graphs [handed out to the commttee] are
i ncorrect because they include 2 percent budget increases.

M5. BLAISDELL replied that Legislative Legal and Research
Services helped draft the [proposed CS]. Their interpretation
was that this one statenment [about a 2 percent increase] was
required [in the graphs]. She said she will ask why it was
required. The |anguage in subsection (b) of the original draft
is slightly different from subsection (b) in the proposed CS.
On page 2, line 15, of the CS, the resolution reads,
"appropriations are made." In the original version, on page 2,
line 16, the |anguage reads, "excluding appropriations listed in
(a)(1)-(10) of this section.” That double exclusion may put the
grom h factor back in [the base], she stated.

Nunber 4302
CO CHAI R WHI TAKER stated that this point needs to be clarified.

COCHAIR HAWKER said that he <concurs wth [Representative
Stoltze's] wunderstanding of the intent of the |anguage. He
suggested clarifying the | anguage for paragraph (10) [on page 2,
line 9], so it elimnates the anbiguity.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE apol ogi zed for not being able to answer

guestions about the detail of HIR 9 with nore clarity and
certainty.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- April 17, 2003



Number 4204

REPRESENTATI VE GARA observed that the general fund is just a
portion of budget; he said he believes the reason why the
deficit is not bigger is the amount of federal noney in the
budget . Per capita, Al askans draw nore noney than people from
any other state, he said, but Alaska wll be receiving |ess
noney from the federal governnent. He said Al aska now receives
$3 billion in federal noney, which is bigger than the state's
general fund expenditures. One exanple of decreasing federal
noney is the $20 mllion reduction to education, he said.
Representative Gara asked if it would it be appropriate to
consider [an amendnent to the resolution] that would rmake up for
| osses in federal noney in order to keep services flat.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that such an allowance could be
added, but asked where the l|egislature would get the noney [to
replace the |ost federal funds]. He asked rhetorically how
great an inconme tax would have to be inplenented to nmake up for
the $20 million loss in revenue.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA admtted that if there were a one-third
reduction in [federal funds], the state could never make up the
di fference; however, he asked about a provision that would all ow
| egi sl ators to nake up a reasonabl e anount.

Nunmber 3929

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said these are all wvalid discussion
poi nts. He acknow edged that the resolution is in the hands of
the coomttee, and he is commenting on suggestions.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG explained how the Alutiiq, [the Native
peopl e] of Kodiak, went through tines of beneficial growth and
times of "dis-gromh." February was the |ongest nonth of their
year, he related. One anthropol ogist said they called it the
nonth of dried fish; they also called it the nonth of |esser or
greater want. Transferring that to Al aska today, the state is
in a period of greater want, he said. The resolution tries to
correct a [constitutional provision] that was put in place 20
years ago in a tinme of lesser want. He said it is odd that in a
period of greater want, the legislature is trying to cut the
budget in order to live within its neans. He said now, in a
time of greater want, its difficult to correct an action nade
during a period of |esser want. He said the resolution needs a
provi sion that addresses fixed cost increases that nobody has

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- April 17, 2003



control over. He said everyone would like to see spring cone
again and the econony grow rapidly. He said these two issues
need to be addressed so that when Al aska noves into a period of
| esser want, governnent doesn't blossom unrealistically as it
did in the 1980s.

Number 3700

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE admtted that passing a constitutional
anendnent is appropriately an arduous task. He pointed out that
there are three nore conmittees to go and another body [before
it goes to the voters].

[HIR 9 was hel d over.]

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
8:10 a. m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- April 17, 2003



